Board of Directors
San Simeon Community Services District

2O

7
£

BOARD PACKET

Tuesday, June 18, 2013
Regular Meeting 6:00 pm

Cavalier Banquet Room
250 San Simeon Avenue
San Simeon, CA

Prepared by @ APT water




AGENDA

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

T

CAVALIER BANQUET ROOM
250 San Simeon Avenue
San Simeon, CA

Note; All comments concerning any item on the agenda are to be directed to the Board Chairperson

1.

2.

NO CLOSED SESSION

REGULAR SESSION: 6:00 PM
A. Roll Call

B. Pledge of Allegiance

PUBLIC COMMENT:

Any member of the public may address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter
within the Board’s jurisdiction, provided the matter is not on the Board’s agenda, or pending
before the Board. Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes or otherwise at the discretion of
the Chair.

A. Oath of Office: Appointed Board Member Ken Patel

B. Sheriff's Report — Report for May

C. Public comment on Sheriff's Report

BOARD PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Board Members may address the Board and the Public relating to any matter within the Board's
jurisdiction. Presentations are limited to three (3) minutes or otherwise at the discretion of the

Chair.

5. STAFF REPORTS

A. General Manager’s Report

1. Staff Activity — Report on Staff activities for the month of May.



2. Grants, Loans and Partnership Opportunities — Update on USDA Loan, WRAC Grant
billing.

3. Small Scale Recycled Water Project — Verbal update on the General Reclaimed Water
Permit application.

4. Update of Settlement Conservation Agreement for Retrofit Program
B. Superintendent’s Report

1. Wastewater Treatment/ Collection Systems — Summary of operations and
maintenance for May.

2. Water / Distribution Systems — Distribution performance for the Month of May.
3. District Maintenance — Summary of District maintenance for May.

C. District Financial Summary — Update on Monthly Financial Status for close of business
May 31, 2013.

D. District Counsel’s Report — Oral Report on current issues

6. ITEMS OF BUSINESS
A. Approval of last month’s minutes — May 15, 2013.

B. Approval of Disbursements Journal — June18, 2013.

7. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
A. DRAFT 2013 — 2014 Fiscal Year Budget for review.
B. Approval of USDA contract, $500,000 — for Wellhead Rehab Project

C. Submittal of WWTP Operation & Maintenance Manual Preparation - Proposal for
Engineering Services.

8. Board Committee Reports — Oral Report from Committee Members.
9. Board Reports — Oral Report from Board Members on current issues.
10.BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS

11.ADJOURNMENT



GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
Charles Grace
Staff Activities for May




1.

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
June 18, 2013

Staff Activity for the month of May

Along with billing and collections, Staff sent out weed abatement notices, coordinated the
Special Board Meeting and election of a new Board Member. Staff coordinated with Phoenix
Engineering, District Counsel and United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). Staff was in
contact with the County Recorder’s office regarding Board vacancy application and election
proceedings. Also attached for your review is the report assembled by Oliveira Consulting
regarding reservoir expansion permitting.

Grants, Loans and Partnership Opportunities

USDA Loan:

District Staff along with Phoenix Engineering and District Counsel continue to complete and
submit documents necessary to move to the construction phase of the Well Rehab project. The
final step needed to move to the construction phase is granting the winning bidder an “Award
Letter” which has been submitted for Board approval under Discussion Action Item “C” of this
board packet.

WRAC Grant Invoice:

The Consulting group (GEl)for the WRAC Grant application process has completed their
invoicing. With Staff's assistance, GEI did not gone over their projected estimated cost for the
San Simeon portion of the project. There is an invoice for $7,000.00 in this month’s warrant
report. Regarding notice of the grant award, projected awarding should be determined by the
State by November 2013.

Small Scale Recycled Water Project

Verbal update from the General Manager to included email correspondence with the Regional
Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) regarding the General Reclaimed Water Permit
application.

Update on Settlement Conservation Agreement for Retrofit Program

Staff has reviewed the settlement in comparison to archived records and found the action items
listed in the settlement document have been completed.



Charles Grace

F « DiSimone, Katie@Waterboards [Katie.DiSimone@waterboards.ca.gov]

s Tuesday, June 11, 2013 11:54 AM

To: Khela, Jagroop@Waterboards

Cc: Charles Grace; Innes, Gordon@Woaterboards; Couch, Scott@Waterboards
Subject: RE: General Permit enroliment

Thanks!

Katie DiSimone
Central Coast Water Board
805-542-4638 (but | prefer email communications)

From: Khela, Jagroop@Waterboards

Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2013 11:54 AM

To: DiSimone, Katie@Waterboards

Cc: Charles Grace; Innes, Gordon@Waterboards; Couch, Scott@Waterboards
Subject: RE: General Permit enrollment

Hi Katie:

| will review the NOI and will contact the District.

Br * Regards,

Jagroop S. Khela, MS, MBA, MSFAIM

Recycled Water Ombudsman

Division of Water Quality, State Water Resources Control Board
Telephone: (916) 341-5560

Fax: (916) 341-5463

Jkhela@waterboards.ca.gov

From: DiSimone, Katie@Waterboards
Sent: Tuesday, June 11, 2013 11:47 AM
To: Khela, Jagroop@Waterboards

Cc: Charles Grace

Subject: General Permit enrollment

Jagroop-

The San Simeon CSD recently completed a project to add tertiary treatment of domestic wastewater at its wastewater
treatment plant. The recycled water use fits the requirements for enrollment under the General Permit, | believe. Attached is
their NOI, but the District is unsure of the fees for enrollment.

C. Jou please process this application and inform Mr. Charlie Grace from the District regarding fees he needs to submit? His
email and contract information is provided on the NOI, and I've cc’d him on the application. Thank you.



1645 HILLCREST PLACE

SAN Luis OBIsPO, CA 93401
(805) 234-7393
JEFFO@OLIVE-ENV.COM
www,OLIVE-ENV.COM

ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSULTING

March 11, 2013

Charles Grace, General Manager

San Simeon Community Services District
111 Pico Avenue

San Simeon, CA 93452

Subject: Scope of Work for Providing Initial Research on the Permitting Needs for a
Possible Expansion of the Existing SSCSD Water Storage Facility

Dear Charlie:

Thank you for the opportunity to assist the San Simeon Community Services District (SSCSD)
with the initial research on the permitting needs for a possible expansion of the existing SSCSD
water storage facility. In response to your request, Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC
(OEC) is pleased to submit this scope of work to provide initial research on the permitting needs
for the water reservoir expansion.

Based on our previous discussions and a site visit at the existing SSCSD water storage facility;
our understanding of the project includes the following details and assumptions:

e The current water storage facility includes a buried and covered cistern with a 150,000
gallon storage capacity;

e The reservoir is of concrete construction and lined;

o The storage facility is not part of a natural water feature (i.e., dammed stream or open
reservoir) and is covered and does not serve any natural function;

e The current tank is buried, with only approximately 2-3 feet of the tank being above-
ground;

o The current water storage facility is located just east of the SSCSD offices, on a part of
the Hearst Ranch, and is fenced and paved (approximately 50 feet x 50 feet in size);

e The possible expansion of the existing reservoir would include a new tank immediately
adjacent to the current tank, it would be buried with a similar low profile, resulting in a
small expansion of the paved facility;

e The expansion project would increase storage capacity by 700,000 gallons;

e The current facility is regulated by the state Department of Health; and

e The current water demand for the community of San Simeon is approximately 90,000
gallons per day.

As requested, this scope of work is intended to be brief as the proposed expansion of the water
storage facility has not been formalized or designed as of yet. This scope is intended to provide
OEC with a small budget to look into what the permitting needs would likely consist of based on

i OEC



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT WATER STORAGE EXPANSION PROJECT
ScoPE OF WORK FOR PROVIDING INITIAL RESEARCH ON PERMITTING NEEDS

our experience and to look into the likelihood of obtaining permit approval from the various
entities listed below

Given the details and assumptions listed above; the following tasks would be needed to do
preliminary research on the permitting needs for the project.

Task 1: Review of current SSCSD plans and files related to the existing facility and long range
planning for community water infrastructure improvements. This includes, but is not limited to,
the San Simeon CSD Water System Master Plan and Wastewater System Collection Evaluation
(November 2007). Total Labor =2 hours.

Task 2: Review of existing regulatory requirements and policies related to SSCSD utilities.
This includes, but is not limited to, current permits and regulations required by the State
Department of Health. This also includes a review of the County of San Luis Obispo Coastal
Zone Land Use Ordinance, General Plan, Area Plans, and a detailed review of existing
regulations and policies related to the current moratorium on development as it relates to
community water supply. Total Labor = 4 hours.

Task 3: Contact the SSCSD General Manager to discuss the existing community water
infrastructure to determine any need for upgrades that would be related to an expansion of the
current water storage facility. Total Labor = | hour.

Task 4: Contact the County of San Luis Obispo Planning and Building Department to discuss
details of the current requirements for development in San Simeon and what issues, if any, would
be triggered by the possible expansion of the water storage capacity. This includes confirming
any Ordinance requirements and the likely level of Coastal Zone Land Use Permits needed, and a
discussion of other County departments that would need to be part of the project (i.e., Cal Fire,
County Public Works) and likely Coastal Commission requirements. This also includes
contacting the Regional Water Quality Control Board to determine their regulatory jurisdiction
and permitting needs for the project. Based on our review of the project and a site visit, we do
not anticipate that the California Department of Fish and Wildlife or the US Army Corps of
Engineers would have jurisdiction over the project. Total Labor = 6 hours.

*Note: We understand the sensitive nature of discussing the possible project with
regulatory agencies. Any contact with these agencies, such as the County of San Luis
Obispo and the RWQCB, would be previously approved through the SSCSD. Any
discussion would focus on the “fact finding” nature of the research and we would make
sure staff understands that a project has not been designed and no future plans have been
approved yet.

Task 5: Prepare a memo for submittal to the SSCSD summarizing the findings of the research
discussed above. Total Labor = 3 hours.

Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC will prepare all of the initial research tasks outlined
above in accordance with the standard OEC rates for Principal Environmental Planner
($85/hour). This scope proposes a total of 16 hours of labor for a fee not to exceed $1,360.

2 OEC



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT WATER STORAGE EXPANSION PROJECT
ScoPE OF WORK FOR PROVIDING INITIAL RESEARCH ON PERMITTING NEEDS

Additional Tasks. Outside of the tasks and assumptions listed above, Oliveira Environmental
Consulting LLC would be happy to provide the following additional tasks including, but not
limited to, assistance with necessary permit applications, agency coordination, environmental
special studies (i.e., springtime biological survey, archaeological survey), and environmental
impact analysis. Additional Tasks are not included in the cost estimate above and would be
performed on a time and materials basis in accordance with the OEC standard fee schedule, and
any subcontractor work would be billed at a cost plus 15% rate.

The proposed scope of services and associated costs are fully negotiable to meet the needs of the
San Simeon CSD. Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC invites any comments on this scope
of work and will make changes as requested. Upon request, additional work not included herein
will be completed in accordance our standard fee schedule.

Thank you for considering Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC for this assignment. If you
have any questions about this scope of services or cost, please feel free to contact me anytime at
805-234-7393 (jeffo(@olive-env.com). To authorize this scope of work, please sign and return a
copy of this letter to OEC.

Sincerely,

e OF -

Jeff Oliveira, Principal Environmental Planner
Oliveira Environmental Consulting LLC

Scope of Work Authorized by:

Name, Tiile Date

3 OEC



SUPERTINTENDENT’S REPORT
Jerry Copeland
Facilities Update for May




SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Superintendent’s Report

Activities of May 2013

Wastewater Treatment Plant

The wastewater treatment plant performed well this month.

All sampling, testing and reporting at the wastewater treatment plant was performed as
required by the RWQCB.

Annual cleaning, inspection and maintenance of reactor and clarifier #4 was performed. A
seal was replaced on the collector drive. The motor and overload relays were replaced on
the collector drive. Several grease fittings were replaced on the collector spindle bearings.

Reactor and clarifier #3 was taken offline for annual cleaning, inspection, maintenance and
repair.

Water Distribution System

All routine sampling and testing was performed. The monthly report was submitted to the
CDPH.

Monthly meter reading was performed.

A battery of tests was performed on Well #3 to meet the requirements of the CDPH for
stand-by status in case of emergency.

District and Equipment Maintenance

Staff continues with all of the scheduled preventive maintenance for all the equipment at
the facilities. We are recording all of these activities.

Quarterly maintenance was performed on the two stand-by generators.



San Simeon Community Services District - Monthly Data Report -May 2013

Date Day Wastewater | Wastewater | CALCULATED | CALCULATED| CALCULATED Water Water Rainfall INPUT
Influent Effluent Well 1 Well 2 Total Daily Water Level Level in State Sewer
Daily flow Daily Flow | Total Pumped | Total Pumped Produced Well 1 Well 2 Inches Daily Flow

05/01/13 Wed 75,803 78,660 0 66,572 66,572 11.3 11.4 0.00 10,062
05/02/13 Thu 74,222 69,380 0 74,052 74,052 11.2 11.3 0.00 10,112
05/03/13 Fri 95,473 89,730 0 132,172 132,172 0.00 10,089
05/04/13 Sat 103,776 95,660 0 68,592 68,592 11.3 11.4 0.00 9,723
05/05/13 Sun 89,680 98,510 0 76,446 76,446 11.3 11.4 0.00 11,674
05/06/13 Mon 75,910 86,240 1,795 71,584 73,379 11.3 11.4 0.00 10,988
05/07/13 Tue 75,594 78,430 74,426 27,227 101,653 0.00 8,937
05/08/13 Wed 74,967 73,570 0 46,301 46,301 0.00 8,080
05/09/13 Thu 74,232 70,210 75,024 2,394 77,418 11.2 11.3 0.00 9,792
05/10/13 Fri 84,694 83,590 34,707 74,127 108,834 0.00 9,519
05/11/13 Sat 80,573 87,830 44 356 18,476 62,832 0.00 11,289
05/12/13 Sun 78,575 83,640 0 61,560 61,560 0.00 13,279
05/13/13 Mon 71,282 80,560 75,099 16,830 91,929 11.2 11.3 0.00 12,893
05/14/13 Tue 65,879 68,050 0 52,210 52,210 0.00 6,539
05/15/13 Wed 74,677 72,380 72,631 9,874 82,504 11.2 11.3 0.00 8,197
05/16/13 Thu 71,560 73,880 0 59,167 59,167 0.00 11,453
05/17/13 Fri 91,872 78,320 81,158 23,562 104,720 11.3 11.4 0.00 9,685
05/18/13 Sat 98,873 99,800 28,873 61,336 90,209 0.00 23,068
05/19/13 Sun 83,899 90,090 60,139 45179 105,318 0.00 2,367
05/20/13 Mon 85,244 94,020 65,375 30,144 95,520 0.00 10,562
05/21/13 Tue 81,519 85,870 0 68,218 68,218 11.3 11.4 0.00 9,892
05/22/13 Wed 80,865 79,910 72,631 0 72,631 11.4 11.5 0.00 10,601
05/23/13 Thu 78,208 80,770 0 63,804 63,804 11.3 11.4 0.00 12,585
05/24/13 Fri 96,186 99,820 79,363 23,861 103,224 11.1 11.2 0.00 10,809
05/25/13 Sat 110,534 106,330 42,786 61,037 103,822 0.00 13,098
05/26/13 Sun 116,239 120,720 56,324 59,690 116,015 0.00 20,606
05/27/13 Mon 99,913 102,650 70,013 1,571 71,584 11.0 11.1 0.00 27,856
05/28/13 Tue 78,885 93,890 0 71,733 71,733 0.00 10,907
05/29/13 Wed 75,686 78,000 75,698 14,661 90,358 10.9 11.0 0.00 10,694
05/30/13 Thu 72,115 67,490 0 56,324 56,324 0.00 11,438
05/31/113 Fri 80,588 75,280 80,485 10,621 91,106 10.9 11.0 0.00 11,110
TOTALS 2,597,523 | 2,643,980 1,090,883 1,449,325 2,540,208 0.00 357,914
Average 83,791 85,290 35,190 46,752 81,942 11.2 11.3 0.00 11,546
Minimum 65,879 67,490 0 0 46,301 10.9 11.0 0.00 2,367
Maximum 116,239 120,720 31,158 132,172 132,172 11.4 11.5 0.00 27,856

e?2




San Simeon Community Services District

Superintendent's Report May 2013

DATA SUMMARY SHEET
2013 |

Jan-13 Feb-13 Mar-13 Apr-13 May-13 Jun-13 Jul-13 Aug-13 Sep-13 Oct-13 Nov-13 Dec-13 [Total for 2013
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,021,340 | 1,908,020 | 2,318,280 | 2,451,860 | 2,643,980 11,343,480
Wastewater Influent 2,314,345 | 2,162,072 | 2,521,425 | 2,462,631 | 2,597,523 12,057,996
Adjusted Wastewater Influent (- State Flow) * [ 2,067,826 | 1,945,010 | 2,232,831 | 2,144,411 | 2,239,609 10,629,687
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,727,730 | 1,703,869 | 1,995,696 | 2,278,258 | 2,540,208 10,245,762
Sewer InfluentWater Produced Ratio 1.34 1.27 1.26 1.08 1.02 N/A
Adusted Sewer/\Water Ratio 1.20 1.14 1.12 0.94 0.88 N/A
Total Well Production 1,727,730 | 1,703,869 | 1,995,696 | 2,278,258 | 2,540,208 10,245,762
Well 1 Water Pumped 748,748 238,462 | 1,839,594 | 1,211,386 | 1,090,883 5,129,073
Well 2 Water Pumped 978,982 |[1,465407| 156,102 [ 1,066,872 | 1,449,325 5,116,689
Water Well 1 Avg Depth to Water 11.2 11.0 11.1 11.2 11.2 N/A
Water Well 2 Avg Depth to Water 11.3 11.1 11.2 11.3 11.3 N/A
Average Depth of Both Wells 11.3 11.1 11.2 11.3 11.3 N/A
Change in Average Well Depth from 2012 +0.6 +0.1 +0.1 +0.1 -0.1 N/A
State Wastewater Treated 246,519 217,062 288,594 318,220 357,914 1,428,309
State % of Total WW Flow 11% 10% 11% 13% 14% N/A
Biosolids Removal (Gallons) 5,000 0 0 6,000 6,000 18,000
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 4] 0 0 0 0
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2012

Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12 Nov-12 Dec-12 [Total for 2012
Wastewater Final Effluent (Month Cycle) 2,282,400 | 2,013,230 | 2,330,795 | 2,716,990 | 2,525.450 | 2,715,470 | 3,502,920 | 3,227,160 | 2,616,130 | 2,535,700 2,175.190 | 2,509,470 | 31,150,905
Wastewater Influent 2,374,670 | 2,135,421 | 2,402,116 | 2,798,195 | 2575428 | 2,749,696 | 3,298,298 | 3,082,906 | 2.634.002 | 2,413,542 | 1,883,791 | 2,482,140 | 30,930,205
Adjusted Wastewater Influent - State Flow) * | 2,100,280 | 1,917,729 [ 2,145,425 | 2,464,553 | 2,265,629 | 2,380,258 | 2,801,758 | 2,634,075 | 2,297,669 | 2,137,808 | 1,757,882 | 2,138,937 | 27,042,003
Water Produced (month cycle) 1,981,790 | 1,852,198 | 1,796,370 | 2,288,880 | 2,390,907 | 2,672,903 | 3,132,146 | 3,061,893 | 2,542,115 | 2,308,627 | 1,773,882 | 1,641,636 | 27.443,447
Sewer Influent/Water Produced Ratio 1.15 1.15 1.34 1.19 1.07 1.03 1.05 1.01 1.04 1.05 1.12 1.51 N/A
Adusted Sewer/\Water Ratio 1.086 1.04 1.19 1.08 0.85 0.89 0.90 0.86 0.90 0.83 0.99 1.30 N/A
Average Depth of Both Wells 10.7 11.0 11.1 11.2 11.4 11.2 11.3 12.0 12.6 13.2 13.9 11.0 N/A
Change in Average Well Depth from 2011 -0.2 -0.3 -1.5 -0.6 -0.6 -0.4 -0.3 -1.5 -1.9 -2.5 -3.2 -0.2 N/A
State Wastewater Treated 274,390 217,692 256,691 333,642 309,798 369,438 496,540 448 831 336,333 275,734 225,909 343,203 3,888,202
State % of Total WW Flow 12% 10% 11% 12% 12% 13% 15% 15% 13% 11% 12% 14% N/A
Biosolids Removal {Gallons) 6,000 0 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 0 6,000 6,000 60,000
WW Permit Limitation Exceeded 0 0 0 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Constituent Exceeded None None None None None None None None None None None None N/A
Sample Limit N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A NA N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Sample Result N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The formula for calculation of "State % of total WW Flow" compares the State Wastewater Treated to the Wastewater Influent Flow.

Page 3



Jan Feb Mar April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec
Well Average Depth 2009 11.5 10.5 10.6 10.8 10.9 11.0 11.8 12.5 13.4 12.4 10.9 10.8
Well Average Depth 2010 9.8 10.1 10.4 10.8 10.8 10.9 10.8 10.8 11.5 12.2 12.4 10.2
Well Average Depth 2011 10.4 10.7 9.6 10.6 10.8 10.8 11.0 10.5 10.7 10.7 10.7 10.8
Well Average Depth 2012 10.6 11.0 11.1 11.2 11.4 11.2 11.3 12.0 12.6 13.2 13.9 11.0
Well ><mqmmm Depth 2013 11.2 11.1 11.2 11.3 11.3
16.0
14.0
12.0
10.0 ==/==\Nell Average Depth 2009
== \Nell Average Depth 2010
- =3i=Well Average Depth 2011
6.0 =0=\Well Average Depth 2012
== \Well Average Depth 2013
4.0
2.0
O-O T T T T T T T T T 1

Jan Feb

Mar

April

June

Sept

Oct

Nov

Dec

Page 4




DISTRICT FINANCIALS
Renee Lundy

May 31, 2013
* Financial Summary
* Balance Sheet

* Water Sales & Production




SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BILLING
May 31, 2013
April Billing Revenue $ 53,293.09
May Billing Revenue $ 53,142.66
Past Due (31 to 60 days) $ 60.23
Past Due (60 days) $ 234.01
RABOBANK SUMMARY

Ending Balances May 31, 2013

Money Marketing Account Closing Balance May 31, 2013 $ 484,973.88

Summary of Transactions:

Interest $ 112.62
Reserve Fund ($ 250,000.00)
Hook up Deposits ($ 43,470.00)

Available Funds $ 191,503.88

General Checking Account $ 145,581.26

Well Rehab Project/USDA Checking Account $ 730.00

LAIF Closing Balance May 31, 2013 $ 516.62



4:12 PM SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

06/12/13 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of May 31, 2013

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
1010 - Petty cash
1020 - General checking
1022 - USDA checking
1040 - Cash in county treasury
1050 - LAIF - non-restricted cash

1060 - Money Market Account 9548643039

Total Checking/Savings

Other Current Assets
1200 - Accounts receivable
1300 - Prepaid expenses

Total Other Current Assels

Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
1400 - Fixed assets
1420 . Building and structures
1500 - Equipment
1540 . Major water projects
1580 - Sewer plant
1600 - Water system
1620 - WWTP expansion
1630 - Tertiary Project
1640 - Wellhead project

Total 1400 - Fixed assets

1650 - Walkway access projects
1690 - Accumulated depreciation

Total Fixed Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities
2100 - Payroll liabilities
2200 - Contingency settlement
2500 - Customer security deposits
2510 - Connect hookup wait list

Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Equity
3200 - Fund balance
Net Income

Total Equily

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

May 31, 13

150.00
145,581.26
730.00
1,741.24
516.62
484,861.26

633,580.38

38,263.50
7,022.97

45,286.47

678,866.85

395,874.73
316,747.53
145,068.22
1,488,555.08
550,390.00
299,565.92
235,886.09
14,302.13

3,446,389.70

11,511.00
-1,863,329.47

1,594,571.23

2,273,438.08

19,5614.64

19,514.64

107.10
25,000.00
10,458.13
43,470.00

79,035.23

98,549.87

98,549.87

2,104,186.39
70,701.82

2,174,888.21

2,273,438.08

Page 1



2013 DISTRICT REVENUE

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals
State Billing $15,874.60 $15,874.60
County Property Tax $757.44 | $1,473.36 | $3,935.20 | $18,534.56| $1,963.98 $26,664.54
Water $18,102.6 | $20,631.4 | $17,394.1 | $23,008.4 | $23,384.4 $102,520.98
Sewer $20,172.8 | $21,705.5 | $18,903.2 | $25,168.5 | $24,914.3 $110,864.20
Service $4,792.3 $4,769.3 $4,769.3 | $4,792.3 | $4,815.4 $23,938.56
Late Fees $80.3 $163.5 $95.6 $58.8 $51.7 $449.77
Total | $43,905.4 | $48,743.0 | $60,972.0 | $71,562.6 | $55,129.7 $280,312.65
Water Sold Cu Ft 220059 216680 209256 285145 279529 1210669
Water Sold Acre ft 5.05 4,97 4.80 6.55 6.42 . 21.7
$28,000.00
M.m Boo.wm pv: “.
Nh.~8°o [
$22,000.00 L B e
$20,000.00 -‘}\ = === State Billing
WMMMMMWM JM.w > =& County Property Tax
$14,000.00 \\ // e Water
| $12,000.00
$10,000.00 / \ =i SEWEF
; / \ : .
| $8,000.00 7 \ e SerVice
| $6,000.00 ‘ = e 20
m#..OOO.OO s ! \K pity T ={==late Fees
$2,000.00 —— ™
$0.00 & , (2 < " L T & T T T T T T T )
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
REVENUE VS EXPENSES
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals
Revenue $43,905.44 | $48,742.98 | $60,971.99 | $71,562.60 | $55,129.70
Expenses $56,546.16 | $62,776.84 | $44,114.20 | $42,560.87 | $62,849.92
Balance -$12,640.72|-$14,033.86 | $16,857.79 | $29,001.73 | -$7,720.22

Nov

Dec




ITEMS OF BUSINESS
* Minutes — May 15, 2013

* Disbursements Journal — June 18, 2013




MINUTES
SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING

CAVALIER BANQUET ROOM
250 San Simeon Avenue
San Simeon, CA

Note; All comments concerning any item on the agenda are to be directed to the Board Chairperson

1. NO CLOSED SESSION

2. REGULAR SESSION@ 6:31 PM

A. Roll Call
Chairperson McAdams - Present Charles Grace — General Manager
Vice-Chair Williams — present Robert Schultz — District Counsel
Director Fields— present Sheriff's Administration — Srgt. Keith Scott

B. Pledge of Allegiance

3. PUBLIC COMMENT: None
A. Sheriff's Report — Report for April

There were 63 calls for service in the month of April for the San Simeon Area (such as; 5
medical, 17 traffic stops, 2 incidents, 5 crime reports, 1 assault, and 1 vandalism). There was
nothing out of the ordinary to report. At this time there have been no reports of other ponga
boats in the area.

B. Public comment on Sheriff's Report: None

4. BOARD PRESENTATIONS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Board directed staff to come up with ideas as to how to commend local merchants in their visual
improvements to their businesses.



5. STAFF REPORTS

A. General Manager’'s Report

1.

Staff Activity for the month of April:

Along with billing and collections, Staff sent out the State/Hearst Castle billing, completed
the Quarterly Newsletter and continued to work behind the District Administration Building.
Staff coordinated with Phoenix Engineering and District Counsel to complete and send
paperwork to the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). Staff was in contact
with the County Recorder's Office regarding review of the Board of Directors 700 forms and
completing paperwork regarding Director Ricci’s resignation.

Grants, Loans and Partnership Opportunities:

District Staff along with Phoenix Engineering and District Counsel continue to complete and
submit documents necessary to move to the construction phase of the Well Rehab project.
The final step needed to move to the construction phase is granting the winning bidder an
“Award Letter” which has been submitted for Board approval under Discussion Action Item
“C" of this board packet.

Small Scale Recycled Water Project:

Staff has continued to solicit the Regional Water Quality Control Board. The Board asked
Staff to write a letter to the entity responsible for issuing the permit to speed things along.
Once letter is complete, the Board will be asked to come to the office to sign.

Settlement Conservation Agreement for Retrofit Program:

Staff has obtained a copy of the settlement between Cavalier Acres and San Simeon CSD
from 2003 regarding a retrofit program. Staff will be reviewing the settlement and making
sure that all of the line items have been completed. Staff will report to the Board at the next
meeting.

B. Superintendent’s Report

Wastewater Treatment Plant

The wastewater treatment plant performed well this month.

All sampling, testing and reporting at the wastewater treatment plant was performed as
required by the RWQCB.



¢ Annual calibration of the flow meters at the wastewater treatment plant was performed by
an outside contractor.

o Reactor and clarifier #4 was taken offline for annual inspection, maintenance and repair.

e One load of sludge was hauled away.
Water Distribution System

e All routine sampling and testing was performed.

o Monthly meter reading was performed.
District and Equipment Maintenance

o Staff continues with all of the scheduled preventive maintenance for all the equipment at
the facilities. All maintenance activities are being recorded.

C. District Financial Summary — Update on Monthly Financial Status for close of business
April 30, 2013.

BILLING
March Billing Revenue $ 41,158.47
April Billing Revenue $ 53,293.09
Past Due (31 to 60 days) $ 000.00
Past Due (60 days) $ 284.64
RABOBANK SUMMARY

Ending Balances April 30, 2013

Money Marketing Account Closing Balance April 30, 2013 $ 484,861.26
Summary of Transactions:
Interest $ 121.33
Reserve Fund ($ 250,000.00)
Hook up Deposits ($ 43,470.00)
Available Funds $ 191,391.26
General Checking Account $ 104,815.86
Well Rehab Project/USDA Checking Account $ 730.00
LAIF Closing Balance April 30, 2013 $ 516.62



D. District Counsel’s Report — Oral Report on current issues.
Beside general duties, Counsel has been working on finishing the USDA/Phoenix Eng
resolution needed to commence the construction portion of the loan.

Counsel has also been involved with Staff in ensuring all proper procedures are done in
accordance to County Regulations regarding the resignation of Dolores Ricci.
6. ITEMS OF BUSINESS
A. Approval of last month’s minutes — April 30, 2013.
A motion was made to approved minutes as is.
Motion by: Director Price
2" by: Director Williams
AllIn: 4 /0
B. Approval of Disbursements Journal — May 7, 2013.
Motion to approve Disbursements Journal as is.
Motion by: Director Williams
2" by: Director Price
All In: 4/0
7. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS
A. Board nominations for Vice-Chair.
A motion was made to recognize Vice-Chair McAdams as Chairperson.
Motion by: Director Fields
2" by: Director Price
Allln: 4/0
A motion was made to nominate Director Williams as Vice-Chair.
Motion by: Director Price

2" by: Chairperson McAdams
AllIn; 4/0



B. Declaration of vacancy — Board motion to commence the application process to fill the
remaining term of office which expires in December of 2014.

A motion was made to post the vacancy of the open position of Director to the
Residents of San Simeon Community Services District.

Motion by: Director Price

2" by: Chairperson McAdams
Allln:4 /0

C. Resolution NO 13-356 - Approval of Award letter to Raminha Construction for the Wellhead
Rehab Project for $377,500 through USDA funding.

A motion was made to pass resolution 13-356 as is.

Motion by: Director Fields

2" by: Director Price
Allln: 4/0

D. Potable Water Tank Expansion Feasibility Study— Proposal for Engineering Evaluation
Services - Proposal for engineering services associated with Potable Water Reservoir
Expansion Feasibility Study in the amount of $5,130 For Discussion and/or Approval.

A motion was made to accept the proposal from Phoenix Engineering for the
Possible Potable water Tank Expansion.

Motion by: Vice-Chair Williams
2" by: Director Fields
Allln: 4/0

8. Board Committee Reports — Oral Report from Committee Members.

The Water Committee will schedule a meeting in July.
9. Board Reports — None
10.BOARD/STAFF GENERAL DISCUSSIONS AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS: None

11.ADJOURNMENT@ 7:34 pm



SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
Disbursements Journal
June 2013

Type Date Num Name Memo Paid Balance
1020 - General checking

Balance Forward 145,581.26
Paycheck  06/01/2013 6856 ALAN FIELDS Board Service -92.35 145,488.91
Paycheck  06/01/2013 6857 DAN WILLIAMS Board Service -92.35 145,396.56
Paycheck  06/01/2013 6858 LERQY E PRICE Board Service -92.35 145,304.21
Paycheck  06/01/2013 6859 RALPH N MCADAMS Board Service -92.35 145,211.86
VOID 06/01/2013 6860 VOID VOID 0.00 145,211.86
Paycheck  06/01/2013 6861 KEN PATEL Board Service -92.35 145,119.51
Bil Pmt  06/11/2013 6862 APTwater, Inc Operations management -38,360.45 106,759.06
Bill Pmt  06/11/2013 6863 County of San Luis Obispo Cross connection direct cost -110.83 106,648.23
Bill Pmt  06/11/2013 6864 Glenn Burdette Services -1,400.00 105,248.23
BillPmt  06/11/2013 6865 MICHAEL O'NEILL Monthly maintenance fee -275.00 104,973.23
Bill Pmt  06/11/2013 6866 Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc Task 101 & 202 -1,260.00 103,713.23
BillPmt  06/11/2013 6867 ROBERT W SCHULTZ ESQ. Services -1,725.00 101,988.23
Bill Pmt  06/11/2013 6868 San Luis Obispo County Public Works Dept WRAC/Grant/Purple pipe -7,000.00 94,988.23
Bil Pmt  06/11/2013 6869 Schock Contracting Corp. Outfall survey -5,750.00 89,238.23
Bil Pmt  06/11/2013 6870 SDRMA 1 yr liab insurance -6,506.89 82,731.34
-62,849.92 82,731.34
TOTAL -62,849.92 82,731.34

Page 1 of 1



DISCUSSION & ACTION ITEMS




DISCUSSION ACTION ITEMS
June 18, 2013

A. DRAFT 2013 - 2014 Fiscal Year Budget for review and comments:

The Draft Fiscal 2013 — 2014 Budget is being handed out at the board meeting for
Board review and questions. Staff would like to receive comments prior to the July
board meeting to provide the Budget Committee direction so that the final budget can
be approved during the July regularly scheduled board meeting.

B. Requested Approval of USDA contract for Wellhead Rehab Project of
$500,000:

Attached for your review is the Wellhead Rehab Project funds contract between the
United States Department of Agriculture and the San Simeon Community Services
District.

C. Requested Approval of Phoenix Engineering to update the Waster Wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP) Operations and Maintenance Manual:

Attached is a proposal from Phoenix Engineering to update the WWTP O/M manual.
The O/M manual has been outdated due to the repairs that took place in 2005 and due
to the installation of the reclaimed water system. Each year in the annual report to the
Regional Water Quality Control Board, staff comments on the status of the existing O/M
manual as the RWQCB mandates that a current O/M manual is maintained. Staff
request approval of the Phoenix Engineering proposal to update the O/M manual.



LOAN AGREEMENT
San Simeon Community Services District
Well Rehabilitation Project

Dated as of June 18, 2013

by and between the

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
acting through
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE,
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE,
as Lender

and the

San Simeon Community Services District as Borrower

(Revised 9/08)



Section 1.1.
Section 1.2.

Section 2.1.
Section 2.2.

Section 3.1.
Section 3.2.
Section 3.3.
Section 3.4.
Section 3.5.
Section 3.6.
Section 3.7.

Section 4.1.
Section 4.2.
Section 4.3.
Section 4.4,
Section 4.5.
Section 4.86.
Section 4.7.
Section 4.8.
Section 4.9.
Section 4.10.

Section 5.1.
Section 5.2.
Section 5.3.
Section 5.4.
Section 5.5.
Section 5.6.

Section 6.1.
Section 6.2.
Section 6.3.
Section 6.4.
Section 6.5.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS
DS OGS o issmsamvimmmivsnovims a8 v s s ¥ s e S s S T s
S]] ] S PSS

ARTICLE Il
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES
Borrower's Representations, Covenants and Warranties...........cccceevvvviinvincnnenn
Lender's Representations, Covenants and Warranties ............ccccvvviiinicnviccnenne

ARTICLE I
TERMS OF LOAN
THELOT ...oonsmmnassmpmsssmensanamnsnms s snsantse s o e B S oS PR A ST ey
Application of Loan Proceeds; FUNGS ..........ccccooiiiiiiinimenieee e
TEIEN..0 o gnnnosssmmnsmnssssmnnssnnsannhbsenss Ay L R A e oo A T T T A R MR e

LOAN REDAYINIETIES ... oeronosnesissinsoinons i ss ey 5o s S S Sovos o8 000 bR TAR S LA TR oo
Additional PAYMENTS...........aucsisessrsmmsmmmmmmms i s s
BOrrOWEr's OblIGatiONS: .........esvessvniinims sy s s s i s i i
Pledge and Application of Net REVENUES...........ccoovvoiiiiiiiee

ARTICLE IV
COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER
Release and Indemnification ..o
Sale or Eminent Domain Taking of Enterprise ...
INSIIPENICE o\ ssvvumsnsnssnsmsmivsssmssmsnns cvvmass s s s o isss v s dvss s SRS s o' B BOR T OR R OREREE e
Records ant ACCOUNES s mmsiassiimsmims i sesivs s sons 5eeimms S s s sssiyss
Rates and Charges .........cccoveeviiieieiaiiinniniee i T R S S
Additional Obligations; Prior Obligations .........cccvviviiiiiiiii
|72 AR 8] o113 =1 ([o] 1 - PN SRS
Assignment by the LENEI ...
Assignment by the BOITOWET ........ccvviiiiiii e
Amendment of this AQreemMENT........ooovviiiiii e

ARTICLE V
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
Events of Default Defined............cooii e
Remedies on Default....... ... e
NO RemMedy EXCIUSIVE .......cooiiiiirieiieece et
Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and EXpPenses...........cccocciviiiiiiiiiiicniicnnen,
NO IMPlEd WEIVET ...t ne e
Application Of ProCEEAS. ......ccci e

ARTICLE VI
PREPAYMENT OF LOAN
SECUNLY DEPOSIE ...eeeieiieceeeie e
Optional Prepayment..... ... eaaa e
Mandatory Prepayment from Insurance or Eminent Domain............cccceiiiiniininnnn
Credit for Amounts on DEPOSIt........ooviieeieci e
Refinancing ReQUIFEMENT..........ovveeeiieiiii e sae e e

ARTICLE VI



Section 7.1.
Section 7.2.
Section 7.3.
Section 7.4.
Section 7.5.
Section 7.6.
Section 7.7.
Section 7.8.
Section 7.9.

Exhibit A:
Exhibit B:

MISCELLANEQOUS

N ONCRE s cmnssmsumis s s oo T oS s S e v ST T ST s T B 18
Birttling EMett conmurasmmirmmssmms i i s T 5 i s e e T S i o 18
T 1 18
Net-net-net CONIACE. .....ccciiiiimmiiiemimsssnmiviimsisetieinmmsn s s vanriss st sasa sbiuis 18
Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments............cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiieens 18
Execution in/COUNEIPATTS ....crusm oo s ssmesasosssrsissssivsmsssinssassimimassasimias e 18
ADPICABIE LAW iuiuisrsicimmmeisvsnusmisiressemss ssssnsss sos it sis S0t bemsis s o o5 Te 5660V Er0E bt frevinn 18
Lender and Borrower Representatives ..o 18
CAPRIOTES s 5usmmusns ovevsesiamuemss by fessssshe S0 s T e v T 0PRSS e 19

Loan Provisions
Project Description



LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT, (this “Agreement”) is dated as of June 18, 2013, and is by
and between the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting through RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE,
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, (the “Lender”), and the San_ Simeon
Community Services District, San Simeon, California, a Community Services District duly
organized and existing under the laws of the State of California (the “Borrower”).

RECITALS:

A. The Borrower owns and operates certain facilities and property for the provision
of water andsewer service for residents within the service area of the Borrower (the Enterprise),
and the Borrower now wishes to finance its share of the public improvements certain
improvements to the Enterprise as defined herein (the “Project”);

B. The Lender is authorized to assist the Borrower in financing the costs of the
Project by making loan funds available to the Borrower; and

C. The Borrower is authorized to borrow monies for such financing under Section
61,000 et. Seq. of the Government Code of the State of California;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the above and of the mutual covenants
hereinafter contained and for other good and valuable consideration, the Lender and Borrower
agree as follows:



ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS

Section 1.1. Definitions. All capitalized terms used in this Loan Agreement shall have
the respective meanings given such terms herein. In addition, unless the context otherwise
requires, the terms defined in this Section 1.1 shall for all purposes of this Loan Agreement
have the meanings herein specified.

“Additional Payments’ means the amounts payable by the Borrower under Section 3.5.
“Borrower' means the San Simeon Community Services District, San Simeon,

California, a Community Services District organized and operating under the Section 61,000 et.
Seq. of the Government Code of the State of California.

“Capitalized Interest' means any amount of interest payable with the proceeds of the
Loan and funded with the Loan.

“County”’ means the County of San Luis Obispo, State of California.

“Costs of Issuance’ means amount of the costs of and incidental to the completion,
execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement as set forth in Exhibit A hereto.

“Coverage Percentage’ means the amount of one hundred and ten percent (110%).

“Enterprise” means the existing facilities and property owned by the Borrower in
connection with (water) (sewer) system of the Borrower, together with all extensions thereof and
improvements thereto hereafter acquired, constructed or installed by the Borrower.

“Federal Securities’ means direct general obligations of (including obligations issued or
held in book entry form on the books of the Department of the Treasury) the United States of
America, or obligations the timely payment of principal of and interest on which are guaranteed
by, the United States of America.

“Fiscal Year” means the twelve-month period beginning July 1 in a calendar year to
June 30 of the succeeding year, both dates inclusive.

“Gross Revenues” means all gross charges received for, and all other gross income
and receipts derived by the Borrower from, the ownership and operation of the Enterprise or
otherwise arising from the Enterprise, including but not limited to connection charges and
earnings on the investment of any funds held by the Borrower; but excluding (a) the proceeds of
any ad valorem property taxes levied for the purpose of paying bonded indebtedness of the
Borrower and (b) the proceeds of any special assessments or special taxes levied upon real
property by the Borrower for the purpose of paying debt service on special assessment bonds
or special tax obligations of the Borrower.

“Interest Rate” means the rate of interest per annum on the unpaid principal balance of
the Loan computed on a 365-day year as set forth in Exhibit A.



“Lender’ means the United States of America, acting through the Rural Utilities Service,
United States Department of Agriculture, or any successor agency thereto.

“Loan’ means the principal amount of the loan made by the Lender to the Borrower
under Section 3.1, as such amount is shown in Exhibit A.

“Loan Fund' means the special fund established under Section 3.02 hereof to make
Loan Repayments.

“Loan Repayment or Loan Repayments’ means the installments of principal and
interest on the Loan required to be paid under Section 3.4 (including any prepayment thereof
under Sections 6.2 or 6.3) as shown in Exhibit A.

“Maintenance and Operation Costs” means the reasonable expenses of management,
operation and repair and other costs and expenses necessary to maintain and preserve the
Enterprise in good repair and working order, and including but not limited to administrative costs
of the Borrower attributable to the Enterprise and the financing thereof, but in all cases
excluding: (a) interest expense relating to unsecured obligations of the Borrower and excluding
depreciation, replacement and obsolescence charges or reserves therefor and excluding
amortization of intangibles or other bookkeeping entries of a similar nature; and (b) all payments
of principal of and interest on the Prior Obligations, and any other payments required to be
made under the instruments authorizing the issuance of the Prior Obligations which, by the
terms of such instruments, are secured by a pledge of or lien upon any of the Gross Revenues
which is superior to the lien established hereunder for the security of the Loan Repayments.

“Maximum Annual Debt Service’ means, as of the date of any calculation, the
maximum sum obtained for the current or any future Fiscal Year during the Term of this Loan
Agreement by totaling the following amounts for such Fiscal year:

(a) The aggregate amount of the Loan Repayments coming due and payable in such
Fiscal Year under the Loan Agreement, except to the extent payable from any security deposit
under Section 6.1;

(b) the principal amount of all outstanding Parity Obligations (if any) coming due and
payable by their terms in such Fiscal year; and

(c) the amount of interest which would be due during such Fiscal Year on the
aggregate principal amount of Parity Obligations which would be outstanding in such Fiscal
Year if such Parity Obligations are retired as scheduled, but deducting and excluding from such
aggregate amount the amount of any such Parity Obligations already retired.

“Net Revenues’ means, for any period, an amount equal to all of the Gross Revenues
received during such period, minus the amount required to pay all Maintenance and Operation
Costs becoming payable during such period.

“Parity Obligations” means any bonds, notes or other obligations of the Borrower
payable from and secured by a pledge of and lien upon any of the Net Revenues on a parity
with the Loan Repayments.

“Principal Amounts" means the amounts of principal of the Loan payable with the Loan
Repayments.



“Prior Obligations” means any obligations of the Borrower payable from and secured
by a pledge of and a prior lien upon any of the Net Revenues and not on a parity with the Loan
Repayments.

“Project’ means the District’s Well Rehabilitation Project, consisting of all of the facilities
and improvements to be acquired, constructed and installed by the Borrower from the proceeds
of the Loan and constituting part of the Enterprise, as described more fully in Exhibit B attached
hereto and by this reference incorporated herein.

“Project Fund’ means the special fund established under Section 3.02 hereof to pay the
Costs of Issuance, the costs of the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project and
related costs.

“Reserve Requirement’ means the requirements of the Lender that the Borrower
establish certain reserves for the purposes and in the amounts specified in Section 3.2.

“State’ means the State of California.

“Term of this Loan Agreement' or “Term” means the time during which this Loan
Agreement is in effect, as provided in Section 3.3.

“Treasurer’ means the chief financial officer or finance director of the Borrower, who
may be the treasurer/tax collector of the County as the ex-officio treasurer for purposes of this
Loan Agreement.

Section 1.2. Exhibits. The Exhibits A and B are attached to, and by reference made a
part of, this Loan Agreement.



ARTICLE Il

REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1. Borrower's Representations, Covenants and Warranties. The
Borrower represents, covenants and warrants to the Lender as follows:

(a) Due Organization and Existence. The Borrower is duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State.

(b) Authorization. The laws of the State authorize the Borrower to enter into this
Loan Agreement and to enter into the transactions contemplated herein, and to carry out its
obligations under this Loan Agreement, and the Board of Directors of the Borrower has duly
authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement.

(c) No Violations. Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement, nor
the fulfillment of or compliance with its terms and conditions, nor the consummation of the
transactions contemplated by it, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms, conditions or
provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Borrower is now a
party or by which the Borrower is bound, or constitutes a default under any of the foregoing, or
results in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge or encumbrances whatsoever upon any
of the property or assets of the Borrower, other than as set forth herein.

(d) Article XIlIl D. The Borrower has taken and successfully completed proceedings
under and in full compliance with Article XIIl D of the California Constitution and regulations
thereunder for the establishment of increased utility rates and charges to the extent required to
meet its obligations to make payments under the Agreement.

Section 2.2. Lender's Representations, Covenants and Warranties. The Lender
represents, covenants and warrants to the Borrower as follows:

(a) Investigation of Project. The Lender hereby certifies that it has had access to,
and has made a complete investigation of, the facts and circumstances relating to the project
and proceedings of the Borrower for the Project, including without limitation, the follows:

(i) The nature and purpose of the Project;
(i) The application of proceeds of the Loan to the Project;
(iii) The nature of the Lender's risks hereunder;

(iv) The Lender’s rights and remedies under any Event of Default hereunder;
and

(v) The Lender is satisfied that its investigation has disclosed all facts which
are material to the Project and to this Loan Agreement.

(b) Assignment. As provided in Section 4.8 herein, the Lender may assign this Loan
Agreement, its right to receive Loan Repayments from the Borrower, or its duties and
obligations hereunder to any other person, firm or corporation.



ARTICLE IlI

TERMS OF LOAN

Section 3.1. The Loan. The Lender hereby agrees to lend to the Borrower and the
Borrower hereby agrees to borrow from the Lender, the amount of the Loan under the terms
and provisions set forth in this Loan Agreement. The Loan shall be made by the Lender to the
Borrower in immediately available funds on the in one or more advances, as determined by the
Lender. If the Loan is made in more than one advance, the date and amount of each advance
shall be recorded in the Record of Advances in Exhibit A. The purpose of the Loan shall be to
finance the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project, pay the Costs of Issuance
and provide for Capitalized Interest, if part of the Loan. The Borrower shall disburse the
proceeds of the Loan for only for such purposes. The Loan is made under the Consolidated
Farm and Rural Development Act, as amended and the regulations issued thereunder and shall
be subject to such Act and regulations.

Section 3.2. Application of Loan Proceeds; Funds. The proceeds of the Loan shall
be disbursed by the Lender to Borrower in accordance with the regulations and procedures of
the Lender. On or before any advance of the Loan by the Lender, the Borrower shall cause to
be established and maintained with the Treasurer the following special funds:

(a) The Loan Fund. The Loan Fund shall be established by the Borrower to pay the
Loan Repayments as herein provided. Any portion of the Loan specified as Capitalized Interest
shall be deposited in the Loan Fund.

(b) The Project Fund. The Project Fund shall be established by the Borrower with
the proceeds of the Loan remaining after the deposits set forth in 3.2 (a) above. Amounts in the
Project Fund shall be applied by the Borrower to pay, or to reimburse the Borrower for payment
of, the Costs of Issuance and the cost of acquiring, construction, improving and equipping the
Project. Monies in the Project Fund shall be held and disbursed by the Borrower in accordance
with the requirements of the Lender, including, if required, the establishment of a supervised
bank account. After payment of all of the Costs of Issuance and of the costs of the Project, any
monies remaining in the Project Fund shall be transferred to the Loan Fund to make Loan
Repayments.

(d) The Reserve Fund. Within one calendar year of the date of this Loan
Agreement, the Borrower shall cause the Reserve Fund shall be established with the Treasurer
from the Net Revenues by depositing a sum equal to one-tenth of an average annual Loan
Repayment each year for a period of ten years from the date of this Loan Agreement such that
Reserve Fund shall equal approximately one year's annual Loan Repayment. Monies in the
Reserve Fund may be used to make Loan Repayments in the event there are not otherwise
available sufficient sums to pay for the Loan Repayments and for only such other purposes as
may be approved by the Lender, including, but not limited to the Maintenance and Operation
and improvement of the Enterprise, except that in the event that the amount in the Reserve
Fund is equal to exceeds the outstanding amount of the Loan, then the Reserve Fund shall be
applied in liquidation of the Loan.

Section 3.3. Term. The Term of this Loan Agreement shall begin on the date of this
Loan Agreement and end on the date shown in Exhibit A.



Section 3.4. Loan Repayments.

(a) Obligation to Pay. The Borrower hereby agrees to repay the Loan at the Interest
Rate on the unpaid principal balance of the Loan payable in the Loan Repayments in the
respective amounts and on the respective Loan Repayment Dates specified in Exhibit A.

(b) Effect of Prepayment. In the event that the Borrower prepays the Loan
Repayments in full under Article VI, the Borrower’s obligations under this Loan Agreement shall
thereupon end, including but not limited to the Borrower’s obligation to pay Loan Repayments
under this Section 3.4, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 6.1 in the case of
prepayment by application of a security deposit. Partial prepayments may be made under
Sections 6.2 or 6.3, but only in the minimum amount specified in Exhibit A.

(c) Rate of Overdue Payments. In the event the Borrower should fail to make any
Loan Repayment when due, the payment in default shall continue as an obligation of the
Borrower until the amount in default shall have been fully paid, and the Borrower agrees to pay
the same with interest thereon, to the extent permitted by law, from the date of default to the
date of payment.

Section 3.5. Additional Payments. In addition to the Loan Repayments, the Borrower
shall pay when due all costs and expenses incurred by the Lender to comply with the provisions
of the Loan Agreement, including but not limited to all Costs of Issuance, annual compensation
due to the Treasurer, including all costs and expenses of the Treasurer payable as a result of
the performance of and compliance with the duties of the Treasurer under the Loan Agreement,
and all costs and expenses of auditors, engineers and accountants.

Section 3.6. Borrower’s Obligations.

(a) Special Obligation. The Borrower’s obligation to pay the Loan Repayments and
the Additional Payments shall be a special obligation of the Borrower limited solely to the Net
Revenues. Under no circumstances shall the Borrower be required to advance moneys derived
from any source of income other than the Net Revenues and other sources specifically identified
herein for the payment of the Loan Repayments and the Additional Payments, nor shall any
other funds or property of the Borrower be liable for the payment of the Loan Repayments and
the Additional Payments. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this Section, however,
nothing herein is intended to prohibit the Borrower voluntarily from making any payment
hereunder from any source of available funds of the Borrower.

(b) Obligation Absolute. The obligation of the Borrower to pay the Loan Repayments
and any Additional Payments from the Net Revenues and to perform and observe the other
agreements contained herein shall be absolute and unconditional and shall not be subject to
any defense or any right to setoff, counterclaim or recoupment arising out of any action or
proceeding or otherwise with respect to the Project or the Enterprise, whether hereunder or
otherwise, or out of any obligation alleged to be owing to the Borrower by the Lender or the
Treasurer. Until such time as all of the Loan Repayments and all of the Additional Payments
shall have been fully paid or prepaid, the Borrower (i) will not suspend or discontinue payment
of any Loan Repayments or Additional Payments, (ii) will perform and observe all other
agreements contained in this Loan Agreement, and (iii) will not terminate this Loan Agreement
for any cause, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the occurrence of any
acts or circumstances that may constitute failure of consideration, eviction or constructive
eviction, destruction of or damage to the Enterprise, sale of the Enterprise, the taking by



eminent domain of title to or temporary use of any component of the Enterprise, commercial
frustration of purpose, any change in the tax or other laws of the United States of America or the
State of California or any political subdivision of either thereof or any failure of the Lender or the
Treasurer to perform and observe any agreement, whether express or implied, or any duty,
liability or obligation arising out of or connected with this Loan Agreement.

(c) Legal Actions. The Borrower may, however, at the Borrower's own cost and
expense and in the Borrower’s own name or in the name of the Lender prosecute or defend any
action or proceeding or take any other action involving third persons which the Borrower deems
reasonably necessary in order to secure or protect the Borrower’s rights hereunder, and in such
event the Lender hereby agrees to cooperate fully with the Borrower.

Section 3.7. Pledge and Application of Net Revenues.

(a) Pledge. All of the Net Revenues and all moneys on deposit in any of the funds
and accounts established hereunder are hereby irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment of
the Loan Repayments and any Parity Obligations, and the Net Revenues and such other funds
shall not be used for any other purpose so long as any of the Loan Repayments and any Parity
Obligations remain unpaid, provided, however, that out of the Net Revenues there may be
apportioned such sums, for such purposes, as are expressly permitted by this Section 3.7.
Except for any Prior Obligations, such pledge shall constitute a first and exclusive lien on the
Net Revenues and such other moneys for the payment of the Loan Repayments and any Parity
Obligations in accordance with the terms hereof and the terms of the Parity Obligations. The
Borrower and the Lender hereby agree that such pledge of the Net Revenues is intended and
shall be construed in all respects to be subject to the payment of the Prior Obligations, which
are hereby acknowledged to be secured by a superior pledge and lien are established by the
Parity Obligations.

(b) Deposit Into Special Fund; Transfers to Make Loan Repayments. All of the
Gross Revenues shall be deposited by the Borrower immediately upon receipt in one or more
special funds to be held and maintained by the Borrower. The Borrower covenants and agrees
that all Net Revenues will be held by the Borrower in such special fund or funds in trust for the
benefit of the Lender and for the benefit of the owners of any Prior Obligations and/or Parity
Obligations. On or before each Loan Repayment Date during the Term of this Loan Agreement,
commencing at least two business days before the first Loan Repayment Date, the Borrower
shall withdraw from such special fund or funds and transfer to the Treasurer, for deposit in the
Loan Fund, an amount of Net Revenues equal to the aggregate amount of the Loan Repayment
coming due and payable on the next succeeding Loan Repayment Date. Any amounts on
deposit in the Loan Fund on any Interest Payment Date shall be credited towards the amount
then required to be deposited by the Borrower with the Treasurer pursuant to the preceding
sentence. In addition, the Borrower shall withdraw from special funds such amounts of Net
Revenues at such times as shall be required to: (i) make up any deficiency in the Reserve
Fund, the notice of which deficiency shall have been given by the Treasurer to the Borrower;
and (i) pay the principal of and interest on any Prior Obligations and/or Parity Obligations and
otherwise comply with the provisions of the instruments authorizing the issuance of any Prior
Obligations and/or Parity Obligations.

(c) Other Uses Permitted. The Borrower shall manage, conserve and apply the Net
Revenues on deposit in such special fund in such a manner that all deposits required to be
made pursuant to the preceding paragraph will be made at the times and in the amounts so
required. Subject to the foregoing sentence, so long as no Event of Default shall have occurred



and be continuing hereunder, the Borrower may at any time and from time to time use and apply
moneys in such special fund or (i) the payment of Additional Payments, (ii) the acquisition and
construction of extensions and betterments to the Enterprise; (iii) the prepayment of the Loan
and any Prior and/or Parity Obligations, or (iv) any other lawful purpose of the Borrower which

are directly incurred by the Enterprise.



ARTICLE IV

COVENANTS OF THE BORROWER

Section 4.1. Release and Indemnification. The Borrower shall and hereby agrees to
indemnify and save the Lender and its officers, agents, successors and assigns harmless from
and against all claims, losses and damages, including legal fees and expenses, arising out of
(a) the use, maintenance, condition or management of, or from any work or thing done on or
about the Enterprise by the Borrower, (b) any breach of default on the part of the Borrower in
the performance of any of its obligations under this Loan Agreement, (c) any intentional
misconduct or negligence of the Borrower or of any of its agents, contractors, servants,
employees or licensees with respect to the Enterprise, and (d) any intentional misconduct or
negligence of any lessee of the Borrower with respect to the Enterprise. No indemnification is
made under this Section 4.1 or elsewhere in this Loan Agreement for willful misconduct,
negligence, or breach of duty under this Loan Agreement by the Lender, its officers, agents,
employees, successors or assigns.

Section 4.2. Sale or Eminent Domain Taking of Enterprise. Except as provided
herein, the Borrower covenants that the Enterprise shall not be encumbered, sold, leased,
pledged, any charge placed thereon, or otherwise disposed of, as a whole or substantially as a
whole. Neither the Net Revenues nor any other funds pledged or otherwise made available to
secure payment of the Loan Repayments shall be mortgaged, encumbered, sold, leased,
pledged, any charge placed thereon, or disposed or used except as authorized by the terms of
this Loan Agreement. The Borrower shall not enter into any agreement which impairs the
operation of the Enterprise or any part of it necessary to secure adequate Net Revenues to pay
the Loan Repayments, or which otherwise would impair the rights of the Lender with respect to
the Net Revenues. [f any substantial part of the Project shall be sold, the payment thereof shall
either (a) be used for the acquisition or construction of improvements, extensions or facilities
constituting part of the Project, or (b) be paid to the Treasurer for deposit into the Loan Fund, to
be used to pay or prepay the Loan Repayments in the manner provided in this Loan Agreement.

Any amounts received as awards as a result of the taking of all or any part of the
Enterprise by the lawful exercise of eminent domain, if and to the extent that such right can be
exercised against such property of the Borrower, shall either (a) be used for the acquisition or
construction of improvements and extension of the Enterprise, or (b) be paid to the Treasurer for
deposit into the Loan Fund to be used to pay or prepay the Loan Repayments in the next
available prepayment date under Section 6.3.

Section 4.3. Insurance. The Borrower shall at all times maintain with responsible
insurers all such insurance on the Enterprise as is customarily maintained with respect to works
and properties of like character against accident to, loss of or damage to such works or
properties. If any useful part of the Enterprise shall be damaged or destroyed, such part shall
be restored to use. All amounts collected from insurance against accident to or destruction of
any portion of the Enterprise shall be used to repair or rebuild such damaged or destroyed
portion of the Enterprise, and to the extent not so applied, shall be paid to the Treasurer for
deposit into the Loan Fund used to prepay the Loan Repayments on the next available
prepayment date under Section 6.3. The Borrower shall also maintain with responsible insurers
worker’'s compensation insurance and insurance against public liability and property damage to
the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Borrower and the Lender.

10



Section 4.4. Records and Accounts. The Borrower shall keep proper books of record
and accounts of the Enterprise, separate from all other records and accounts, in which complete
and correct entries shall be made of all transactions relating to the Enterprise. Such books
shall, upon prior request, be subject to the reasonable inspection of the Lender or its
representative(s) authorized in writing.

The Borrower shall cause the books and accounts of the Enterprise to be audited
annually by an independent certified public accountant or firm of certified public accountants,
not more than one hundred eighty (180) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, and shall
make a copy of such report available for inspection by the Lender or Lender’s representatives at
the office of the Borrower and at the office of the Treasurer. In addition, a copy of the final audit
report shall be provided to the Lender's area or other office responsible for servicing the Loan,
the identification and location of which office shall be supplied to the Borrower by the Lender in
writing. .

The Borrower shall cause to be published annually, not more than one hundred eighty
(180) days after the close of each Fiscal Year, a summary statement showing the amount of
Gross Revenues, the disbursements from Gross Revenues and from other funds of the
Borrower in reasonable detail, and a general statement of the financial and physical condition of
the Enterprise and of the Borrower. The Borrower shall furnish a copy of the statement to the
Treasurer and to the Lender.

Section 4.5. Rates and Charges.

(a) The Borrower shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and charges for
the services and facilities furnished by the Enterprise during each Fiscal Year which (together
with existing unencumbered fund balances which are lawfully available to the Borrower for
payment of any of the following amounts during such Fiscal Year) are at least sufficient, after
making allowances for contingencies and error in the estimates, to pay the following amounts in
the following order: ;

(i) All Maintenance and Operation Costs estimated by the Borrower to
become due and payable in such Fiscal Year;

(ii) Any Prior Obligations;
(iii) The Loan Repayments and any Parity Obligations;

(iv)  All payments coming due and payable during such Fiscal Year and
required for compliance with this Loan Agreement; and

(v) All payments required to meet any other obligations of the Borrower
which are charges, liens, encumbrances upon or payable from the Gross Revenues or
the Net Revenues during such Fiscal Year.

(b) In addition, the Borrower shall fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees and
charges for the services and facilities furnished by the Enterprise during each Fiscal Year which
are sufficient to yield Net Revenues which, together with existing unencumbered fund balances
which are lawfully available to the Borrower in such Fiscal Year, are at least equal to the
Coverage Percentage of the amount of Loan Repayments and any payments of principal and
interest on any Prior Obligations and/or Parity Obligations coming due and payable during such

11



Fiscal Year. In the event that the amount of such existing unencumbered fund balances,
excluding Net Revenues, becomes less than the amount of Maximum Annual Debt Service
during any Fiscal Year, the Borrower shall thereupon fix, prescribe, revise and collect rates, fees
and charges for the services and facilities furnished by the Enterprise during such Fiscal Year
which are sufficient to yield Net Revenues in such Fiscal Year (excluding connection charges) at
least equal to one hundred percent (100%) of the amount of Loan Repayments and Reserve
Requirements and any payments of principal and interest on any Prior and/or Parity Obligations
coming due and payable during such Fiscal Year.

Section 4.6. Additional Obligations; Prior Obligations. The Borrower shall not issue
or incur any bonds or other obligations having any priority in payment of principal or interest out
of the Net Revenues over the Loan Repayments. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing
sentence, the Borrower shall not issue or incur any bonds or other obligations on a parity with
the Prior Obligations. The Borrower shall faithfully perform and observe all of the covenants
and agreements on its part provided in the ordinances and resolution authorizing the Prior
Obligations, and shall not suffer any event of default to occur with respect to any of the Prior
Obligations.

Section 4.7. Parity Obligations. Except for obligations incurred to prepay or post a
security deposit for the Loan in whole or in part under Section 6.1, the Borrower shall not issue
or incur any Parity Obligations without the prior written approval of the Lender unless:

(a) The Borrower is not then in default under the terms of this Loan Agreement; and

(b) The Net Revenues (excluding connection charges), calculated in accordance
with sound accounting principles, as shown by the books of the Borrower for the latest Fiscal
Year or as shown by the books of the Borrower for any twelve (12) month period selected by the
Borrower in its sole discretion ending not more than ninety (90) days prior to the adoption of the
resolution or ordinance authorizing such Parity Obligations, in either case verified by a
certificate or opinion of an independent certified public accountant employed by the Borrower,
plus, at the option of the Borrower, any or all of the items hereinafter in this Section designated
(i) and (i), at least equal one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the amount of Maximum Annual
Debt Service.

The items any or all of which may be added to such Net Revenues for the purpose of
issuing or incurring Parity Obligations under the Loan Agreement are the following:

0] An allowance for Net Revenues from any additions or improvements to or
extensions of the Enterprise to be made with the proceeds of such Parity Obligations
and also for Net Revenues from any such additions, improvements or extensions which
have been made from moneys from any source but in any case which, during all or any
part of the latest Fiscal Year or such twelve (12) month period, were not in service, all in
an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the estimated additional average annual Net
Revenues to be derived from such additions, improvements, and extensions for the first
thirty-six (36) month period in which each addition, improvement or extension is
respectively to be in operation, all as shown by the certificate or opinion of a qualified
independent engineer employed by the Borrower.

(ii) An allowance for Net Revenues arising from any increase in the charges

made for service from the Enterprise which has become effective prior to the incurring of
such Parity Obligations but which, during all or any part of the latest Fiscal Year or such

12



twelve (12) month period, was not in effect, in an amount equal to the total amount by
which the Net Revenues would have been increased if such increase in charges had
been in effect during the whole of such Fiscal Year or twelve (12) month period, all as
shown by the certificate or opinion of an independent certified public accountant
employed by the Borrower.

(c) To the extent required under the instruments creating the Parity Obligation, there
shall be established from the proceeds of such Parity Obligations, or otherwise, a reserve fund
for the security of such Parity Obligations, in an amount equal to the lesser of (i) the maximum
amount of debt service required to be paid by the Borrower with respect to such Parity
Obligations during any Fiscal Year or (i) the maximum amount then permitted under applicable
law.

Section 4.8. Assignment by the Lender. The rights of the Lender under this Loan
Agreement, including the right to receive and enforce payment of the Loan Repayments, are
assignable should the Lender elect to do so. The Borrower hereby acknowledges and consents
to this provision and such assignment.

Section 4.9. Assignment by the Borrower. Neither the Loan nor this Loan Agreement
may be assigned by the Borrower without the written consent of the Lender.

Section 4.10. Amendment of this Agreement. This Loan Agreement may be

amended by the Borrower and the Lender, but only under the circumstances and to the extent
permitted under the regulations of the Lender.

13



ARTICLE V

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 5.1. Events of Default Defined. The following shall be Events of Default
under this Loan Agreement:

(a) Failure by the Borrower to pay any Loan Repayment or to pay other amounts
required to be paid hereunder at the time specified herein.

(b) Failure by the Borrower to observe and perform any covenant, condition or
agreement on its part, other than in clause (a) of this Section 5.1, for a period of thirty (30) days
after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied has been given to
the Borrower by the Lender, provided, however, that the Lender and the Borrower may agree
that action by the Borrower to cure such failure may be extended beyond such thirty-day period.

(c) The filing by the Borrower of a voluntary petition in bankruptey, or failure by the
Borrower promptly to lift any execution, garnishment or attachment, or adjudication of the
Borrower as a bankrupt, or assignment by the Borrower for the benefit of creditors, or the entry
by the Borrower into an agreement of composition with creditors, or the approval by a court of
competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to the Borrower in any proceedings instituted
under the provisions of the Federal Bankruptcy Code, as amended, or under any similar acts
which may hereafter be enacted.

Section 5.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default shall have
happened and be continuing, the Lender shall have the right, at its option and without any
further demand or notice to:

(a) declare all Principal Amounts of the unpaid Loan Repayments, together with
accrued interest thereon at the Interest Rate from the immediately preceding Loan Repayment
Date on which payment was made, to be immediately due and payable, whereupon the same
shall immediately become due and payable, provided, however, that the provisions of this
clause (a) are subject to the condition that if, at any time after the principal components of the
unpaid Loan Repayments shall have been so declared due and payable pursuant to the
preceding subsection (a), and before any judgment or decree for the payment of the moneys
due shall have been obtained or entered, the Borrower shall deposit with the Treasurer a sum
sufficient to pay all principal components of the Loan Repayments coming due prior to such
declaration and all matured interest components (if any) of the Loan Repayments, and the
reasonable expenses of the Treasurer (including any fees and expenses of its attorneys and
court and other collection costs), and any and all other defaults known to the Treasurer (other
than in the payment of the principal and interest components of the Loan Repayments due and
payable solely by reason of such declaration) shall have been made good, then, and in every
such case, the Lender, by written notice to the Borrower and to the Treasurer, shall rescind and
annul such declaration and its consequences. However, no such rescission and annulment
shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default, or shall impair or exhaust any right or
power consequent thereon; and

(b) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to

collect the Loan Repayments then due or thereafter to become due during the Term of this Loan
Agreement, or enforce performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant

14



of the Borrower under this Loan Agreement, including, but not limited to, taking possession of
the Enterprise and the operation and maintenance thereof and collection of revenues therefrom,
and the expenditure of all sums necessary for such operation and maintenance, all for the
benefit of the Borrower and/or such other actions as may be authorized under the then-current
regulations of the Lender.

Section 5.3. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to
the Lender is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be
in addition to every other remedy given under this Loan Agreement or now or hereafter existing
at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any
default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any
such right and power may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed
expedient. In order to entitle the Lender to exercise any remedy reserved to it in this Article V it
shall not be necessary to give any notice, other than such notice as may be required in this
Article V or by law.

Section 5.4. Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event either
party to this Loan Agreement should default under any of the provisions hereof and the
nondefaulting party should employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of
moneys or the enforcement or performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on
the part of the defaulting party herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will on
demand therefor pay to the nondefaulting party the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such
other expenses so incurred by the nondefaulting party.

Section 5.5. No Implied Waiver. In the event any covenant or agreement contained in
this Loan Agreement should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other
party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to
waive any other breach hereunder.

Section 5.6. Application of Proceeds. All monies received from any proceedings
under this Article V, and all other amounts derived by the Lender or the Treasurer as a result of
an Event of Default hereunder, shall be transferred to the Treasurer promptly upon receipt
thereof and shall be applied by the Treasurer pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions
of this Loan Agreement.

15



ARTICLE VI

PREPAYMENT OF LOAN

Section 6.1. Security Deposit. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Loan
Agreement, the Borrower may on any date secure the payment of Loan Repayments in whole or
in part, by irrevocably depositing with the Treasurer an amount of cash which, together with
other available amounts, is either (a) sufficient to pay all such Loan Repayments, including the
principal and interest components thereof, when due under Section 3.4(a), or (b) invested in
whole or in part in Federal Securities in such amount as will, in the opinion of an independent
certified accountant, together with interest to accrue thereon and together with any cash which
is so deposited, be fully sufficient to pay all the aggregate total of the Loan Repayments
remaining to be paid under Section 3.4(a) on the next Interest Payment Date which is at least
thirty (30) days and not more than ninety (90) days after establishment of such deposit. In the
event a security deposit is made under this Section, all obligations of the Borrower under this
Loan Agreement, and the pledge of Net Revenues and all other security provided by this Loan
Agreement for such obligations, shall cease and terminate, excepting only the obligation of the
Borrower to make, or cause to be made, all of Loan Repayments from such security deposit at
one time upon the established Interest Payment Date. Such security deposit shall be deemed
to be and shall constitute a special escrow fund for the advanced prepayment of such Loan
Repayments. Nothing herein shall be deemed to permit an advanced defeasance or refunding
of the obligations under this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.2. Optional Prepayment. The Borrower shall have the option to prepay the
unpaid principal balance of the Loan in whole, or in part in any integral multiple of the amount
shown in Exhibit A, or any Loan Repayment Date, by paying a prepayment price equal to the
principal amount of the Loan to be prepaid, together with the interest required to be paid on
such date. Such prepayment price shall be deposited by the Treasurer in the Loan Fund to be
applied to the prepayment of Loan Agreement. The Borrower shall give the Treasurer notice of
its intention to exercise its option not less than sixty (60) days in advance of the date of
exercise.

Section 6.3. Mandatory Prepayment from Insurance or Eminent Domain. The
Borrower shall be obligated to prepay the unpaid principal balance of the Loan in whole on any
date, or in part in any integral multiple of the amount shown in Exhibit A on any Loan
Repayment Date, from and to the extent of any proceeds of insurance award or condemnation
award with respect to the Enterprise theretofore deposited in the Loan Fund for such purpose
under Sections 4.2 or 4.3. The Borrower and the Lender hereby agree that such proceeds, to
the extent remaining after payment of any delinquent Loan Repayments, shall be credited
towards the Borrower's obligations under this Section 6.3.

Section 6.4. Credit for Amounts on Deposit. In the event of prepayment of the Loan
in full under this Article VI, all amounts then on deposit in the funds held by the Treasurer shall,
at the election of the Borrower, be credited towards the amounts then required to be so prepaid.

Section 6.5. Refinancing Requirement. The Borrower understands and agrees that the
Loan is made under and is subject to the provisions of and the regulations of the Lender
promulgated under the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act of 1961, as amended.
Among such provisions is the requirement of the refinancing of the Loan at market rates and
terms under the conditions specified by the Lender under such regulations. The Borrower

16



understands and agrees that it may be required to pay additional costs and retain the services
of private underwriters, consultants and bond counsel at its own expense to accomplish such
refinancing.

17



ARTICLE VI

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 7.1. Notices. All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be
given by first class mail or personal delivery to the party entitled thereto at its address set forth
in Exhibit A, or at such address as the party may provide to the other party in writing from time
to time. Notice shall be effective forty-eight (48) hours after deposit in the United States mail,
first class postage prepaid or, in the case of personal delivery, upon delivery to the address set
forth in Exhibit “A.”

Section 7.2. Binding Effect. This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Lender and the Borrower and their respective successors and
assigns.

Section 7.3. Severability. In the event any provision of this Loan Agreement shall be
held invalid or unenforceable by any court or competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 7.4. Net-net-net Contract. This Loan Agreement shall be deemed and
construed to be a “net-net-net’ contract, and the Borrower hereby agrees that the Loan
Repayments shall be an absolute net return to the Lender, free and clear of any expenses,
charges or set-offs whatsoever.

Section 7.5. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Lender and the
Borrower agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to
be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further
instruments as may reasonably be required for carrying out the expressed intention of this Loan
Agreement.

Section 7.6. Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be executed in
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one
and the same instrument.

Section 7.7. Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California and the United States of
America. The provisions of Form RUS BULLETIN 1780-27 are hereby incorporated herein by
this reference, whether or not such form has been adopted by the Board of the Borrower,
provided, however, that all references in such form to “bonds” shall be deemed to refer to this
Loan Agreement.

Section 7.8. Lender and Borrower Representatives. Whenever under the provisions
of this Loan Agreement the approval of the Lender or the Borrower is required, or the Lender or
the Borrower is required to take some action at the request of the other, Borrower and Lender,
respectively, shall designate in writing to the each other an authorized representative, and each
party hereto shall be authorized to reply upon any such approval or request provided by such
representative.

18



Section 7.9. Captions. The captions or headings in this Loan Agreement are for
convenience only and in no way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or
Section of this Agreement.

h k kK hk ok k%

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Lender and the Borrower have caused this Loan
Agreement to be executed by their duly authorized officers as of the date first above written.

LENDER:

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting
through UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT
OF AGRICULTURE, RURAL UTILITIES
SERVICE

By:

Name (print) Alfred Correale

Title: Programs Specialist

BORROWER:

SAN SIMEON COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT

By:

Name (print)

Title:

19



EXHIBIT A
LOAN AGREEMENT
San Simeon Community Services District
Well Rehabilitation Project

LOAN PROVISIONS

The loan amount is $ 500,000.00 and the Interest Rate is 2.75% per annum.
2. The Costs of Issuance are $0.00 (and the Capitalized Interest is $0.00).

3 The principal and interest shall be paid in the following fully amortized
installments of principal and interest on or before the following Loan Repayment Dates:

$10,345 on June 18, 2014,
$10,345 on December 18, 2014

and

$10,345 thereafter on June 18" and December 18th of each year until the
principal and interest are fully paid except that the final installment of the entire
indebtedness evidenced hereby, if not sooner paid, shall be due and payable not
later than 40 (forty) years form the date of this Agreement.

4. The minimum dollar amount for optional or mandatory prepayment on any Loan
Repayment Date is $0.00.

5. Notices under this Loan Agreement shall be sent to:
District: San Simeon Community Services District
111 Pico Av

San Simeon, CA 93452
Attn: General Manager and Board President

Lender: Rural Utilities Service, USDA
Rural Development
920 E Stowell Rd
Santa Maria, CA 93454
Attn: Community Programs Specialist

Treasurer: (not applicable)

Attn:

A-1



ADVANCE NO.

NEREREY

RECORD OF ADVANCES

AMOUNT OF ADVANCE

€ A €0 H B & P P

DATE OF ADVANCE

, 20__
20
,20__
20
20
20
»20__
,20__



EXHIBIT B

LOAN AGREEMENT
San Simeon Community Services District
Well Rehabilitation Project

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Project consists of the rehabilitation and/or construction of water system public
improvements including related design, environmental analysis, construction plans and bidding,
the acquisition of all lands, easements, rights-of-way, licenses, franchises, and permits and the
construction of all auxiliary work necessary and/or convenient to the accomplishment thereof,
(including, but not limited to the removal and disposal of toxic materials related to the public
improvements), in accordance with plans and specifications to be approved by the District:



Position 5

RUS BULLETIN 1780-27 APPROVED
OMB. No. 0575-0015

(Automated 8-97) LOAN RESOLUTION
(Public Bodies)
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN SIMEON COMMIUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

AUTHORIZING AND PROVIDING FOR THE INCURRENCE OF INDEBTEDNESS FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING A
PORTION OF THE COST OF ACQUIRING, CONSTRUCTING, ENLARGING, IMPROVING, AND/OR EXTENDING ITS

WATER SYSTEM

FACILITY TO SERVE AN AREA LAWFULLY WITHIN ITS JURISDICTION TO SERVE.

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the SAN SIMEONCOMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
(Public Body)
(herein after called Association) to raise a portion of the cost of such undertaking by issuance of a loan agreement in the principal amount
of: FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND AND XX/100%#%*#%#*#%#%%(§5()(,000,00)****##&#hsssus ik
pursuant to the provisions of CALIFORNIA GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 61,000 ET SEQ; and
WHEREAS, the Association intends to obtain assistance from the United States Department of Agriculture,
(herein called the Government) acting under the provisions of the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1921
et seq.) in the planning. financing, and supervision of such undertaking:
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises the Association hereby resolves:

1. To have prepared on its behalf and to adopt an ordinance or resolution for the issuance of a loan agreement containing such
items and in such forms as are required by State statutes and as are agreeable and acceptable to the Government,

2. To refinance the unpaid balance, in whole or in part, of its loan agreement upon the request of the Government if at any time
it shall appear to the Government that the Association is able to refinance its loan agreement by obtaining a loan for such purposes
from responsible cooperative or private sources at reasonable rates and terms for loans for similar purposes and periods
of time as required by section 333(c) of said Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act (7 U.S.C. 1983(c)).

3. To provide for, execute, and comply with Form RD 400-4, "Assurance Agreement," and Form RD 400-1, "Equal
Opportunity Agreement," including an "Equal Opportunity Clause," which clause is to be incorporated in, or attached
as a rider to, each construction contract and subcontract involving in excess of $10,000.

4. To indemnify the Government for any payments made or losses suffered by the Government on behalf of the Association.

Such indemnification shall be payable from the same source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement or any other legally per-
missible source.

5. That upon default in the payments of any principal and accrued interest on the loan agreement or in the performance of any
covenant or agreement contained herein or in the instruments incident to making or insuring the loan, the Government at
its option may (a) declare the entire principal amount then outstanding and accrued interest immediately due and
payable, (b) for the account of the Association (payable from the source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement or any other
legally permissible source), incur and pay reasonable expenses for repair, maintenance, and operation of the facility
and such other reasonable expenses as may be necessary to cure the cause of default, and/or (c) take possession of the
facility, repair, maintain, and operate or rent it. Default under the provisions of this resolution or any instrument incident to
the making or insuring of the loan may be construed by the Government to constitute default under any other instrument
held by the Government and executed or assumed by the Association, and default under any such instrument may be
construed by the Government to constitute default hereunder.

6. Not to sell, transfer, lease, or otherwise encumber the facility or any portion thereof, or interest therein, or permit others
to do so, without the prior written consent of the Government.

7. Not to defease the loan agreement, or to borrow money, enter into any contractor agreement, or otherwise incur any liabilities
for any purpose in connection with the facility (exclusive of normal maintenance) without the prior written consent of the
Government if such undertaking would involve the source of funds pledged to pay the loan agreement,

8. To place the procceds of the loan agreement on deposit in an account and in a manner approved by the Government. Funds may be
deposited in institutions insured by the State or Federal Government or invested in readily marketable securities backed
by the full faith and credit of the United States. Any income from these accounts will be considered as revenues of the system.

9. To comply with all applicable State and Federal laws and regulations and to continually operate and maintain the facility
in good condition.

10. To provide for the receipt of adequate revenues to meet the requirements of debt service, operation and maintenance, and
the establishment of adequate reserves. Revenue accumulated over and above that needed to pay operating and mainte-
nance, debt service and reserves may only be retained or used to make prepayments on the loan. Revenue cannot be used
to pay any expenses which are not directly incurred for the facility financed by USDA. No free service or use of the
facility will be permitted.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 1 hour per response, including the time for reviewing instructions,
searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments
regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for veducing the burden, to Department of
Agriculture, Clearance Officer, OIRM, Room 404-W, Washington, DC 20250; and to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction
Project (OMB No. 0575-0013), Washington, DC 20503..




1.

16.

17.

To acquire and maintain such insurance and fidelity bond coverage as may be required by the Government.

To establish and maintain such books and records relating to the operation of the facility and its financial affairs and to
provide for required audit thercof as required by the Government, to provide the Government a copy of each such audit
without its request, and to forward to the Government such additional information and reports as it may from time to
time require.

To provide the Government at all reasonable times access to all books and records relating to the facility and access to
the property of the system so that the Government may ascertain that the Association is complying with the provisions
hereof and of the instruments incident to the making or insuring of the loan.

That if the Government requires that a reserve account be established, disbursements from that account(s) may be used
when necessary for payments due on the loan agreement if sufficient funds are not otherwise available and prier approval of the
Government is obtained. Also, with the prior written approval of the Government, funds may be withdrawn and

used for such things as emergency maintenance, extensions to facilities and replacement of short lived assets.

To provide adequate service to all persons within the service area who can feasibly and legally be served and to obtain
USDA’s concurrence prior to refusing new or adequate services to such persons. Upon failure to provide services which
are feasible and legal, such person shall have a direct right of action against the Association or public body.

To comply with the measures identified in the Government's environmental impact analysis for this facility for the pur-
pose of avoiding or reducing the adverse environmental impacts of the facility's construction or operation.

To accept a grant in an amount not to exceed $ _ 0.00

under the terms offered by the Government; that the CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
and SECRETARY of the Association are hereby authorized and empowered to take all action necessary

or appropriate in the execution of all written instruments as may be required in regard to or as evidence of such grant; and
to operate the facility under the terms offered in said grant agreement(s).

The provisions hereof and the provisions of all instruments incident to the making or the insuring of the loan, unless otherwise
specifically provided by the terms of such instrument, shall be binding upon the Association as long as the loan agreement are held or
insured by the Government or assignee. The provisions of sections 6 through 17 hereof may be provided for in more specific

detail in the bond resolution or ordinance; 1o the extent that the provisions contained in such bond resolution or ordinance

should be found to be inconsistent with the provisions hereof, these provisions shall be construed as controlling between the
Association and the Government or assignee.

The vote was: Yeas Nays Absent
IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT has duly adopted this resolution and caused it
to be executed by the ofticers below in duplicate on this » day of
(SEAL) By
Attest: Title Chairman of the Board

Title




CERTIFICATION TO BE EXECUTED AT LOAN CLOSING

I, the undersigned, as CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS of the

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT hereby certify that the

BOARD OF DIRECTORS of such Association is composed of members, of whom,

constituting a quorum, were present at a meeting thereof duly called and

held on the th day of ; and that the foregoing resolution was adopted at

such meeting by the vote shown above, I further certify that as of , the

date of closing of the loan from the United States Department of Agriculture, said resolution
remains in effect and has not been rescinded or amended in any way.

Dated, this day of

Title Chairman of the Board of Directors




Position 5

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL DEVELOPMENT

OPINION OF COUNSEL RE LOAN AGREEMENT

TO: The Honorable Board of Directors
District

, California 9 :and

United States of America

United States Department of Agriculture
Rural Utilities Service/ Rural Development
920 E Stowell Rd

Santa Maria, CA 93454

FROM: __ (Name of Law Firm
(Address)

OPINION: $500,000 Loan Agreement, Well Rehabilitation Project, San Simeon
Community Services District

Members of the Board:

We have acted as general counsel in connection with the authorization, execution and

delivery by the District (the “District”) of its $ Loan Agreement,

Project, by and between the District and the United States of America, acting

through the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service, dated as of

, 20__ (the “Loan Agreement”), as authorized by Resolution No. adopted by

the Board of Directors of the District on , 20__ (the “Resolution”). We have examined

the applicable law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we deem necessary
to render this opinion.

As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon representations of
the District contained in the Resolution, the Loan Agreement and in the certified proceedings
and certifications of public officials and others furnished to us, without undertaking to verify the
same by independent investigation.

Based upon the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law, that:



San Simeon Community Services District
June 18, 2013
Page 2

1. The District is duly created and validly existing as a district under
the Constitution and laws of the State of California with the power to adopt the Resolution, to
enter into the Loan Agreement and to perform the undertakings and agreements on its part
contained therein.

2. The Resolution has been duly adopted and all other actions undertaken by the
Board of Directors of the District for the Loan Agreement have been taken in full adherence to
all procedural requirements, including, but not limited to the successful completion of all
proceedings under and in compliance with Article XlIl D of the California Constitution and
regulations thereunder for the establishment of increased utility rates and charges to the extent
required for the Agreement.

2. The Loan Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered on
behalf of the District by persons authorized to do so and the Loan Agreement constitutes a valid
and binding special obligation of the District, payable solely from the sources therein provided
and enforceable upon on the District in accordance with its terms.

3. Pursuant to the _(cite the law) , the Loan Agreement creates
a valid lien on the funds pledged by the Loan Agreement for the security of the loan evidenced
by the Loan Agreement.

4, To the best of our knowledge after reasonable investigation, there is no action,
suit, proceeding or investigation at law or equity before or by any court, public board or body
pending or threatened against or affecting the District, to restrain or enjoin the adoption of the
Resolution or the obligations of the District under the Loan Agreement or in any way affecting
the Loan Agreement.

5. The adoption of the Resolution and the execution and delivery of the Loan
Agreement do not and will not constitute a breach or default under any agreement, decree,
order or other instrument to which the District is a party and the District need not obtain any
consent, authorization, order or approval of any court, regulatory authority or government body
for the valid adoption of the Resolution or the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement.

Respectfully submitted,
Name of Law Firm

By




Phoenix Civil Engineering, Inc.

4532 Telephone Road, Ste. 113 Ventura, Ca 93003 805.658.6800
info@phoenixcivi.com www.phoenixcivil.com

Ms. Dee Dee Ricci May 6, 2013
San Simeon Community Services District

111 Pico Ave.

San Simeon, CA 93452

San Simeon Community Services District - WWTP Operation and Maintenance Manual
Preparation— Proposal for Engineering Services

Dear Ms. Ricci-

[ am pleased to provide you with this proposal for engineering services associated with the preparation of
the WWTP Operation and Maintenance manual. The District wastewater treatment plant has been in
operation for a very long time. Changes in past operations staff has left the District with a facility that
does not have a current operation and maintenance manual for the facility equipment. As equipment has
been changed and updated over time, there is not a comprehensive document that summarizes what is
installed. Based on our conversations and my review of the documents provided, I have prepared my

proposal to include the following:

Task 101: Data Collection, Research and Review
Task 102: Draft Operation and Maintenance Manual Preparation
Task 103: Final O&M Manual Completion

I appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to assist you with this project. I have attached a scope
of work and our professional services rate sheet along with a fee schedule detailed by task and a project
schedule. Our scope of work covers feasibility level services only and does not include permit assistance
services as you indicated that another individual was performing that work on behalf of the District. In
addition, the proposal does not include design or construction phase services.

_Please Jet me know if yon have any questions or would like to discuss my proposal.

Jon Turnef, PBJ J\j A

Principal Enginjeer



May 6, 2013

Scope of Services

Background/Project Understanding

The District wastewater treatment plant has been in operation for a very long time. Changes in past
operations staff has left the District with a facility that does not have a current operation and maintenance
manual for the facility equipment. As equipment has been changed and updated over time, there is not a
comprehensive document that summarizes what is installed. The District staff is capable of maintaining
the equipment present; however, a comprehensive operation and maintenance (O&M) manual of the
facility is prudent.

Task 101: Data Collection, Research and Review
Existing data on the wastewater treatment plant equipment will be obtained during a field visit. Equipment

manufacturers, equipment make, model and serial numbers will be documented. Any information relating to
the equipment will be obtained from the District staff. Changes from the last O&M manual effort will be
documented. Research on-line and via telephone conversation will be performed to obtain O&M
documents/recommendations from the individual manufacturers for incorporation into the manual.
Coordination with the District staff will be limited to the equipment. The O&M document is not intended to
be a manual for plant treatment efforts, but only an equipment manual.

The following efforts are included in this task:

e Review of existing documentation provided by the District relating to the wastewater treatment plant
equipment.
e Coordination with the District staff responsible for the treatment plant operation.

Deliverable: No deliverable is associated with this task.

Task 102: Draft Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manual Preparation

This task involves preparation of the draft O&M manual for the wastewater treatment plant. The O&M
manual will incorporate the efforts associated with Task 101 as well as utilization of the documents provided
as a reference.

The following efforts are included in this task:

o  Preparation of the draft O&M manual incorporating the efforts from Task 101.
o Delivery of the draft O&M manual to the District for their review and comments.

Deliverable: Three (3) sets of the draft 0&M manual will be provided to the District for their internal review.
One electronic copy of the draft manual (.pdf) will be provided.

Task 103: Final O&M Manual Completion

This task includes incorporation of the District review comments on the draft O&M manual deliverable.

The following efforts are included in this task:

e Incorporation of District review comments on the draft O&M manual.
¢ Finalization of the O&M manual and delivery to the District.

Page 1 of 2



May 6, 2013

Deliverable: Three (3) sets of the final O&M manual will be provided to the District for their files. One
electronic copy of the final manual (.pdf) will be provided.

Schedule

The work associated with Tasks 101 through 103 will be made a top priority. Every effort will be made to
keep the project schedule moving along.

Fees
Work associated with Tasks 101 through 103 is estimated to cost $3,915. A breakdown of the level of effort is
listed below:

Task 101: Data Collection, Research and Review $1,840
Task 102:  Draft Operation and Maintenance Manual Preparation $1,460
Task 103:  Final O&M Manual Completion $615

Page 2 of 2



PHOENIX

CIVIL ENGINEERING, INC

Professional Services Rate Sheet

Principal Engineer $155/hour
Resident Engineer $145/hour
Professional Engineer $130/hour
Staff Engineer $115/hour
Senior Designer $115/hour
Construction Observer $105/hour
Designer $85/hour

Administrative Assistant $45/hour

Special Consultant $150/hour

Costs associated with printing and computer time are calculated in the rates. Large
quantities of printing (multiple sets of specifications, reports, etc.) will be billed at an
agreed upon rate. Mileage will be billed at the current IRS approved mileage
reimbursement rate. Subconsultant costs will be marked up 10%.



